ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE HEALTH, EDUCATI ON AND SOCI AL SERVI CES STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 9, 2004
1:39 p. m

TAPE(S) 04-5
MEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Fred Dyson, Chair

Senat or Lyda Green, Vice Chair

Senator Gary W/ ken

Senat or Gretchen CGuess (via tel econference)

MEMBERS ABSENT
Senat or Bettye Davis
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 277

"An Act relating to the Alaska Comm ssion on Postsecondary
Education; relating to the Al aska Student Loan Corporation;
relating to bonds of the corporation; relating to |loan and grant
prograns of the comm ssion; relating to an exenption from the
State Procurenent Code regarding certain contracts of the
comm ssion or corporation; making conformng changes; and
providing for an effective date."

MOVED CSSB 277(HES) OQUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BI LL NO. 285

"An Act relating to nedical assistance coverage for targeted
case nmanagenent services and for rehabilitative services
furnished or paid for by a school district on behalf of certain
children; and providing for an effective date.”

MOVED SB 285 QUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BI LL NO. 288

"An Act relating to certain determ nations concerning placenent
of a child in enmergency custody and tenporary placenent hearings
in child-in-need-of-aid proceedings; and providing for an
effective date.”

MOVED CSSB 288( HES) OUT OF COWM TTEE

SENATE HES COW TTEE -1- February 9, 2004



SENATE BILL NO 289
"An Act extending the termnation date of the special education
servi ce agency; and providing for an effective date.™

MOVED SB 289 OUT OF COWM TTEE
PREVI QUS ACTI ON
BILL: SB 277

SHORT TI TLE: STUDENT LOAN PROGRAMS
SENATOR(s): RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

01/ 23/ 04 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 23/ 04 (S) HES, FIN

02/ 04/ 04 (S) HES AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
02/ 04/ 04 (S) Heard & Hel d

02/ 04/ 04 (S) M NUTE( HES)

02/ 09/ 04 (S) HES AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

BILL: SB 285
SHORT TITLE: MEDI CAL ASSI STANCE COVERAGE
SENATOR(s): GREEN

01/ 28/ 04 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 28/ 04 (S) HES, FIN
02/ 09/ 04 (S) HES AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

BILL: SB 288
SHORT TITLE: EMERGENCY CHI LD CUSTCDY PLACENMENT
SENATOR(s): GREEN

02/ 02/ 04 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 02/ 04 (S) HES, JUD
02/ 09/ 04 (S) HES AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

BILL: SB 289
SHORT TI TLE: EXTENDI NG THE SPECI AL ED SERVI CE AGENCY
SENATOR(s): GREEN

02/ 02/ 04 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
02/ 02/ 04 (S) HES, FIN
02/ 09/ 04 (S) HES AT 1: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

M5. DI ANE BARRANS

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 2- February 9, 2004



Executive Director

Al aska Comm ssi on on Postsecondary Educati on ( ACPE)
Juneau, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented CS to SB 277.

MS. JACQUELI NE TUPQU

Staff to Senator Lyda G een

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 9801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented SB 285, SB 288, and SB 289.

MR. JCEL G LBERTSON, Conmmi ssi oner

Department of Health and Social Services (DHSS)

PO Box 110601

Juneau, AK 99801-0601

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on what SB 285 acconpli shes.

MR. JON SHERWOCD

Department of Health and Social Services (DHSS)

PO Box 110601

Juneau, AK 99801-0601

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions pertaining to SB 285.

M5. MARCI E KENNAI, Deputy Comm ssi oner

Ofice of Children’s Services

Departnent of Health and Social Services (DHSS)

PO Box 110630

Juneau, AK 99801-0630

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on the inportance of SB 288.

MR CHRI STOPHER L. ROBI NSON

Executive Director

Speci al Education Service Agency (SESA)
2217 E. Tudor Road

Anchor age, AK 99507

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supported SB 289.

MS. JANET JOHNSON

Cordova, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supported SB 289.
ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 04-5, SIDE A

CHAI R FRED DYSON cal l ed the Senate Health, Education and Soci al
Services Standing Commttee neeting to order at 1:39 p.m

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 3- February 9, 2004



Senators W1 ken, Geen, and Chair Dyson were present. Senat or
Davis was excused due to mnedical problens in her famly and
Senator Guess joined the neeting via teleconference, as it was
in progress. He said the commttee would take up SB 277, SB
285, SB 288, and SB 289 and that his intention was to hear
public testinony and to nove the bills out today. He asked if
anybody had tinme constraints that should be considered in
today’ s neeting. Hearing no response, he announced the first
order of business was SB 277.

SB 277- STUDENT LOAN PROGRAMS

M5. DI ANE BARRANS, Executive Director, Al aska Conm ssion on
Post secondary Education (ACPE, *“Comm ssion”) spoke to the
concerns that had been brought up by conmittee nenbers at the
previous neeting [neeting of 2/4/04]. She addressed the first
concern by referencing Section 4, page 3, regarding Al aska
Student Loan Corporation’s (ASLC) authority to finance projects
of the state with the proceeds of bond issues. This supports
the Corporation’s intent to, over a three-year period, return a
substantial anpbunt of the original capital that the state
contributed to start up the Corporation. To renedy concern that
| anguage was overly broad and could lead to putting the
Corporation in a financially untenable position in the future

Ms. Barrans recommended addi ng Subsection (g), [AS 14.42.220] to
cap the aggregate anount; the total the Corporation could issue,
with respect to (a)(3) would be $280 nillion.

M5. BARRANS said the second concern expressed by comittee
menbers pertained to the Conmmssion's limted authority to
prioritize four occupation categories and how, in the event of
an unforeseen energency, the Comm ssion would not have the
authority to prioritize grant noney to individuals pursuing
careers outside of those categories. The renedy to this concern
was to renmove the limting section, the |anguage in Section 21

lines 28 — 29 [health, human services, education, or public
safety]. She noted that conform ng changes would need to be
made to Section 24, reflecting that the |anguage defined in
paragraph (3) had been renoved. Paragraph (4) would read,

“occupation or profession” because the term “occupational or
professional field” would be renbved. She said these constitute
the commttee substitute (CS) [which was currently en route to
the HESS commttee].

MR. JASON HOOLEY, staff to Senator Dyson, infornmed CHAIR DYSON
and nenbers that CS would arrive during today’ s hearing.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -4- February 9, 2004



CHAI R DYSON said he would suspend the hearing on SB 277 wuntil
the arrival of the CS, later in the neeting.
1:45 p. m

SB 285- MEDI CAL ASSI STANCE COVERAGE

The conmittee took up SB 285.

MS5. JACQUELI NE TUPQU, staff to Senator Lyda G een, presented SB

285 on behalf of the sponsor and testified that this bill allows
the state to extend targeted case nanagenent to various user
groups that aren’t currently included in its authority. By

doing so, it allows for refinancing of general fund expenditures
by reinbursing the schools for the targeted case nanagenent
servi ces. Secondly, it changes the state’s rehabilitative
services to match the federal definition of rehabilitative
services. Doing this ensures reinbursenent for the school - based
Medicaid rehabilitative services. It’s estimated that this
l egislation will potentially save approximately $270 [thousand]
in FY 05.

SENATOR W LKEN asked, “How does this roll into what we did a
coupl e years ago about -- we asked soneone to start billing the
feds for sonmething. Were are we on that project?”

SENATOR LYDA GREEN responded that this bill was directly rel ated
to that |egislation and she deferred to Conm ssioner G | bertson

MR. JOCEL G LBERTSON, Comm ssioner, Departnent of Health and
Social Services (DHSS), said that SB 285 acconplishes two
purposes, and testified as foll ows:

One purpose does deal with school -based Medicaid

to inprove and increase the flexibility for schoo
districts ... being able to bill for Medicaid services
and to assist them in the docunentation of those
services. Also, to address a deficiency found in the
current authority of the departnment to nove forward
[on what] was found by the Departnent of Law.

The first of these two deals with the ability of the
schools to adequately docunent for services so that

they can bill. For this reason, the Ilegislation
itself now directly <cites the code of federal
regulations in the definition of rehabilitative
servi ces. The wunanbi guous |inkage of the state and

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 5- February 9, 2004



federal definition will permt services reconmmended by
the physician or provider — normally included in the
student’s |EP [Individual Education Plan] - those
services normally recomrended, not prescribed, can be
billed under Medicaid. W have an approved state plan
for therapies, normally OI, PT, speech, sone assisted
devices for hearing, sone transportation services,
nursing services, and it is the departnent’s intent,
after passage of this legislation, to submt another
state plan anendnment of the Medicaid program to
broaden the scope, and to include psychol ogical
eval uation and counseling services. However, absent
this change, and this inclusiveness of the federa
| anguage, under the CFR, we are now working under a
paradigmin which the doctor has to prescribe services
as opposed to services recomended in the IEP, to
al l ow those services to be billed under Medi cai d.

Al so, the amendnent 1is needed because when the
departnent began to inplenent school-based services
| egi slation, SB 345, which was passed in 2002, the
Department of Law noted that while the bill had added
school -based rehabilitative services to the |ist of

covered Medicaid services, in AS 47.07.030, the
statutory definition of rehabilitative services in AS
47.07.900 was left wunchanged. So the scope was
changed but not the definition. That restricts

rehabilitative services only to t hose adul t
individuals who are substance abusers or who are

chronically medically ill. As a result, t he
departnment cannot issue regulations allowing the
school districts to bill for rehabilitative services.

SB 285 fixes this problem by including a separate
definition for rehabilitative services for schoo
districts in AS 47.07.063, which supersedes the
previ ous definition that was in AS 47.07.900.

The second point of this legislation addresses
targeted case nmanagenent [TCM services. Currently,
those services are optional services under federal
Medi caid | aw. This change, being put forward in this
| egislation, coincides with the department’s general
effort to replace the general fund in the provision of
health care services across the state. Current | aw
restricts the provision of targeted case nmanagenent
services to substance abusers, chronically nentally
i1l adults, and SED (severely enotionally disturbed)

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 6- February 9, 2004



chil dren. TCM for these groups is funded at the
Medi caid program match rate of 58 percent federal, 42

percent state. This is a change from the current
funding of these services, which is at 100 percent
general fund doll ars. The anendnent will permt DHSS

to identify additional groups that are currently
recei ving case nanagenent services that are funded by
the general funds, and replace that with the Medicaid
match rate of 58 percent federal funds.

Some exanpl es of services that can be provided through
TCM services include: Children under the care/custody
of the Ofice of Children’s Services or Departnent of
Juvenile Justice [DJJ] who are not currently in
detention beds; children in the Infant Learning
Program sone public health nursing services; children
within the educational system who have an |EP; and
targeted tribal groups. The fiscal note notes only
m ni mal general fund savings for FY 05. It is a zero
fiscal note because the governor’s budget already
includes a $270 thousand savings assunming the
i npl enentation of this legislation and the successfu

i npl enentation of TCM services in FY O05. Much work
has to be done to begin the services. ot ai ni ng
federal approval of the state plan anendnent to draw
down the necessary funds has recently becone a nore
prol onged process than previously. State plan
anendnents are becomng nore difficult to receive
approval on, but we do ultimately receive approval.
This is an approvable state plan amendnent, so we do
anticipate inplenentation at sone point during FY 05,
and wll realize these savings. In addition, billing,
accounting, and case nmanagenent systens wll need
nodification in order to submt and support this new
claimng activity. These are sone of the reasons for
there being mnimal savings for FY 05, but we believe
that future savings will be nuch larger for the state.

CHAI R DYSON acknow edged that Senator QGuess was participating in
the neeting via tel econference.

SENATOR GREEN said she wanted to respond to inquiries she has
received from school districts on this issue and asked when this
process would be in place.

COWMM SSI ONER G LBERTSON responded there is a two-pronged effort
to inplenent this legislation, recalling a previous discussion

SENATE HES COW TTEE -7- February 9, 2004



with Senator Geen to get this fast-tracked. He said the
regul ations were developed and a state plan anmendnent was
submtted which was the federal side of this to get approval to
provi de these services. The state plan anendnent was approved
for sone services, largely therapies; the deficiency in the
regul ati ons was noted by the Departnent of Law. He said as soon
as this legislation is passed and the legislative authority
exists to engage in the services, regulations would be put out
again, there would be a comment period, and finalization of the
regul ati ons. An additional state plan amendnent wll be
submtted to expand the scope of services to include counseling
and psychol ogi cal eval uati on. Those services would be subject
to the time process of getting the state plan anendnent
approved. Historically this hasn’t taken long, but as of late
it has taken quite a bit of time to get approval by the federa
governnment, he said.

SENATOR CGREEN asked, “Possibly next fall?”
COMM SSI ONER G LBERTSON replied this would be the goal

SENATOR W LKEN commented on the fiscal note, saying that this
had been about a $4 million savings, which was an additional
anount of noney that could be spent in the schools.

SENATOR GREEN said she didn't renenber the anount.

COWMWM SSI ONER G LBERTSON responded that a sizable anmount of
federal noney wll be gathered through school-based Medicaid
cl ai m ng. That noney goes to the school districts, and the
districts provide towards the general fund maxinmum wth 42
percent drawing down 58 percent of federal nonies. The $270
thousand is the savings the state anticipates in FY 05. As a
result of the second part of this legislation, TCM services that
allow for <claimng sone federal match dollars on services
currently being paid for with general fund dollars, that scope
of business and anobunt of claimng is expected to increase over
the long-term Acknow edging the start-up tine, “we don’t
anticipate a large savings in FY 05.”

SENATOR W LKEN questioned what this would nean to the 53 schoo
districts and asked, “What will be freed up?”

MR. JON SHERWOOD, DHSS, responded that Senator WIlken “was in
the ballpark” regarding the total anmount of funds, saying that
this would bring into the school district the nechanism the
school district provides to general funds [indisc. due to

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 8- February 9, 2004



coughing] and the state process through the federal funds. M.
Sherwood said he was not aware if estimtes had been revised
regardi ng how fast the noney would conme in or if the amount was
still the sanme. Sone of that depends on seeing what the federal
government actual ly approves.

SENATOR W LKEN said the bill would go on to Finance, and asked
M. Sherwood if there was a way to profile one district, such as
Anchorage, and give a range (low high) of what it may nmean five
years from now.

MR. SHERWOOD responded that the departnment could conme up with an
estimate.

CHAIR DYSON said, “We would enjoy seeing that when it gets to
Fi nance.” He asked Senator Cuess if she had any questions and
then asked her if she was somewhere where she could receive a
f ax.

SENATOR GRETCHEN GUESS replied that unfortunately she was not
near a fax, however, she understood the changes that M. Barrans
had di scussed regarding the proposed CS to SB 277. [SB 277 was
previously heard during today s neeting.]

CHAI R DYSON then asked if there were any additional questions on
SB 285. Hearing none, he said he would entertain a notion.

SENATOR GREEN noved SB 285 from conmittee wth individual
recommendat i ons and acconpanyi ng fiscal notes.

CHAIR DYSON asked if there were any objections. Seeing and
hearing none, it was so ordered.

SB 288- EMERGENCY CHI LD CUSTODY PLACENMENT

M5. JACQUELI NE TUPQU, staff to Senator Lyda Green, presented SB
288 on behalf of the sponsor. Current state |aw provides for
the court to determne, wthin 48 hours of [a child] being
renoved from the honme, that there is probable cause to renopve
the child from the home; however, the [courts] can use varied
| anguage when making that determ nation. Federal law states
that the judge, in his/her findings, has to use the phrase that
staying in the honme is “contrary to the welfare” of the child.

If that doesn’'t occur, “we could have problens getting our
federal noney from the governnent.” This bill puts the system
in place so that the judge has to determne whether it 1is
contrary to the welfare of the child to remain in the hone. It

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 9- February 9, 2004



is estimated that if this legislation passes, there wll be
$500,000 in federal Title |IV-E receipts in FY 05.

SENATOR GREEN noved the [proposed] CS [version D, |abeled 23-
LS1567\D, M schel, 2/5/04] for purposes of discussion.

CHAI R DYSON asked if there was any objection. There being none,
version D was before the coonmttee as the working docunent.

SENATOR CGREEN explained that the first word of the sentence on
the last line on page 1 [line 14], should be “At” instead of
“After”.

M5. MARCIE KENNAI, Deputy Conmi ssioner, Ofice of Children' s
Services, DHSS, testified that SB 288 is very inportant
regarding federal Title IV-E dollars comng into the state. | f
this language is not in the court order at the first hearing, a
child is not [Title] IV-E eligible. That affects the child s
eligibility for foster care and also for an adoption subsidy,
whi ch means that a child could be “general fund through his 18!
birthday.” Another point is that the judge has the opportunity
at the very first hearing to tell parents “it is contrary to the
wel fare of your child” if he/she stays at honme at this tine.
Aside from the positive revenue to be achieved from this, it
al so gives a very clear nessage to the biol ogical parents.

CHAIR DYSON stated, for the record, that he and his wfe
currently do not have any foster children. However his three
children have four foster <children today that involve a
subsi di zed guardi anship, so it nmay be that his inmmediate famly
recei ves funds under this.

SENATOR GUESS asked if the |language was nore or |ess stringent,
and wondered what the changes would be nean in court.

2:03 p.m

DEPUTY COW SSI ONER KENNAI responded that she didn't think this
woul d change nuch for the court. If the first hearing is
continued and the judge has not made the finding that it is
contrary to the welfare of the child to remain in the hone, this

automatically makes the <child ineligible for [Title] IV-E
rei mbursenent. Hopefully judges are not renoving children or
giving permssion to renove children fromthe hone unless it is
contrary to the welfare of the child to remain at hone. She

said that the practice is already happening, but the federal

SENATE HES COW TTEE -10- February 9, 2004



requirenent is stringent about the |anguage being included in
the very first court order.

CHAIR DYSON then referred to a publication he had worked on
several years ago advising parents of their rights and providing
informati on about the process; he asked if those efforts were
still being continued.

DEPUTY COWM SSI ONER KENNAI confirned this to be so.

CHAI R DYSON said this departnental effort was inportant because
a parent who loses a child needs to know what is going on and

what his/her rights are. He mentioned that in her forner life
[ Deputy Conm ssioner Kennai] probably worked wth simlar
statutes, and referred to page 1, lines [8 and] 9, “the child s
parents or guardian, if they can be found, shall be permtted to
be present.” He said he reacted to the word, “permtted”
because of course the parents should be present. He consi dered

deleting “permtted” but then re-considered the situation of a
child who has been assaulted or traumatized by the birth parents
and asked, “What is the situation under which the parents m ght
not be permtted to be there. What process would the judge go
through to exclude the parents from bei ng there?”

DEPUTY COWM SSI ONER KENNAI responded, “1 don’t think there is
ever a case where the parents aren't permtted.” She said
sonetimes the parents cannot be found, are in jail, or are

unabl e to attend the hearing.
CHAI R DYSON asked, “And the child is normally not present?”

DEPUTY COWM SSI ONER KENNAI said this depends on the child s age.
Children are generally present unless the child is too young, or
cannot under st and.

CHAI R DYSON asked, “Wo nakes that decision?”

DEPUTY COWMM SSI ONER KENNAI said, “lI believe our workers nake
t hat deci sion.”

CHAI R DYSON asked, “If the child was able to understand, and had
allegedly been assaulted by the parents, and it wuld be
traunmatic for them to be confronted with their abuser, what
happens?”

DEPUTY COWM SSI ONER KENNAI responded that sonetines the judge
sees the child in [the] chanbers. Oten the children can be

SENATE HES COW TTEE -11- February 9, 2004



kept separated fromthe parents until it’'s tine for the child to
go in, if the judge wants to see the child. Every situation is

different. Generally, if a parent has assaulted the child,
he/she is in custody. *“OF course we will keep the child safe,”
she added.

CHAI R DYSON asked if deleting the word “permtted” would do any
harmto the statute.

SENATOR GREEN commented that this would inply that parents are
being required to be there because it would read, “shall be
present” and parents may not want to be present. She said this
requirenent would set a different parameter, whereas current
statute inplies that it’s a choice. She said, “lI don’t even
know that you'd want a parent there if they didn't want to be
there.”

M5. TUPQU informed nenbers that it had been relayed anecdotally
that, sadly enough, nost of the parents don’t want or care to be
present. She pointed out that the desire was not to hinder the
process by requiring parents to be present.

CHAIR DYSON commented that it was probably the flavor of the

| anguage. He said he preferred “shall be allowed to be there”
rather than “permtted” and said, “I am not going to nmess wth
it. | can assure you that nost of the parents won't have | ooked

at the statute.”

DEPUTY COWMM SSI ONER KENNAI said that when parents don’'t cone,
that is often the reason why the judge continues the case;
that’s when you don't get these “contrary to welfare” findings.
Most often, that has been the problem At the first hearing the
parents may not show up and the court continues the case.
Unfortunately this neans that if the judge has not very clearly
stated that it is contrary to the welfare of the child to remain
in that home, then the child is not eligible for [Title] IV-E
f unds.

CHAI R DYSON asked if in her former life she ever had a parent
who thought that the state took custody when [the state] should
not have.

DEPUTY COWM SSI ONER KENNAI sai d yes.
CHAIR DYSON said that interestingly enough he has not had a

single call like that since “you ve been here,” noting that he
didn’t know if there was any cause and effect relationship.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -12- February 9, 2004



DEPUTY COW SSI ONER KENNAI said she would like to think that
there was, but it is still [indisc.].

CHAI R DYSON asked how | ong she had been on the job.

DEPUTY COWM SSI ONER KENNAI responded, “alnost six nonths, not
quite.”

CHAI R DYSON asked how many kids the state has taken custody of
during that period of tine.

DEPUTY COW SSIONER KENNAI said that since Septenber, she
doesn’t know, daily and yearly counts are nuaintained. She asked
for that data from [an unidentified person in the audience] who
al so didn’t know the answer.

CHAIR DYSON asked if there were any further questions or
coment s. There being none, he said he would entertain a
not i on.

SENATOR GREEN noved to report the CS for SB 288 out of conmttee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal
not e.

CHAIR DYSON asked if there were any objections. Seeing and
hearing none, it was so ordered.

SB 277- STUDENT LOAN PROGRAMS

CHAI R DYSON announced that the proposed CS had arrived and the
committee would return to SB 277.

SENATOR W LKEN nmoved to report the CS for SB 277 (version D)
[l abel ed 23-GS2003\D, Cook, 2/9/04] out of commttee wth
i ndi vi dual recommendations and the attached fiscal notes.

SENATOR GREEN brought up a point of order regarding adopting the
CS before noving the bill out.

SENATOR W LKEN noved and asked unani nbus consent that the prior
notion be w thdrawn.

CHAI R DYSON acknow edged that there was no objection and it was
so ordered.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -13- February 9, 2004



SENATOR W LKEN nmoved and asked unani mous consent that version D
be adopted as the working docunent for SB 277.

CHAIR DYSON asked if there was any objection. Hearing none
version D was before the commttee.

M5. BARRANS infornmed the commttee that she had previously
failed to nmention a change and wanted nenbers to be apprised of

that change before proceeding with the vote. She referred to
page 11, line 24, and said that the prior version of the bill
had established a severe shortage at a vacancy rate of 10
percent or greater. She said since the scope of the potenti al

prioritization group was being expanded, raising that rate an
additional 5 percent would be prudent; she had reconmended that
change as wel .

CHAI R DYSON noted that he had been alerted to that change.

SENATOR WLKEN noved to report CSSB 277, version D, from
commttee with individual recomendations and attached fiscal
not es.

CHAIR DYSON asked if there was any objection. Seeing and
hearing none, it was so ordered.

CHAI R DYSON added that the purview of the HESS conmttee was to
evaluate what SB 277 does for education, while the financial
inplications - which are significant — would be dealt with in
the next commttee of referral.

2:15 p.m

SB 289- EXTENDI NG THE SPECI AL ED SERVI CE AGENCY

M5. JACQUELI NE TUPQU, staff to Senator Lyda Green, presented SB 289
on behalf of the sponsor and provided the follow ng testinony:

The Al aska Legislature established the Special Education
Service Agency (SESA) in 1986 to help schools and Infant
Learning Progranms provide required services for children
with disabilities where there was no |ocal expertise, for
instance if you lived in a school district with one blind
child or one deaf child [indisc.]. Also, rural Alaska is
where this programis utilized quite frequently.

The availability of these workers in the state, and the
people who specialize in the area of disabilities has

SENATE HES COW TTEE -14- February 9, 2004



really gone down. At the sanme time, the incidence of
disabilities has gone up. SESA provides required and
i nportant services for people who mght otherw se have to
go to costly residential prograns and |eave their
communities and famlies to have these services provided.

This bill re-authorizes SESA for nine years, until June 30,
2013. Included in the packet are 25 or 30 letters of
recomrendat i on from wvarious school districts, t he

Associ ation of School Boards, and nunmerous other agencies
in NEA Alaska. SESA is very well received and everyone is
chanpioning for its re-authorization.

MVR. CHRI STOPHER L. ROBI NSON, Executive Director, Speci al
Educati on Service Agency (SESA), testified that he was avail abl e
to answer questions.

SENATOR W LKEN requested of M. Robinson that when SB 289 gets
to Finance, he’'d be interested in knowi ng how SESA distributes
the estimted $2.1 mllion dollars amng the 53 schoo
districts.

CHAI R DYSON asked where the kids with [FAS/ FAE] show up within
speci alized prograns for kids with disabilities.

MR. ROBINSON replied that FAS/ FAE (Fetal Al cohol Syndrone/Feta
Al cohol Effect) kids are identified under the special education
category, such as learning disability, enotional disturbance, or
multiple disabilities. They would typically be served through
what is called, “mld disability” special education services at

the school district |evel. SESA's specific focus is on severe,
| ow-i ncidence (nmeaning occurring infrequently) disabilities.
Hi storically, SESA s funding does not target [FAS/ FAE] kids. In

1999, SESA won a Health and Social Services grant issued to
devel op intervention strategies for classroom purposes. He said
the funding only staffed one professional position and by design
it was inadequate to address the classroom situation. Af ter
talking wwth DHSS and the University of Al aska, Fairbanks, that
grant was cooperatively transitioned to UAF with the intent that
the funding would augnent UAF' s general teacher education
program to better equip teachers to handle instructiona
di fferences presented by those kids. Since then, SESA has not
had such targeted services.

CHAI R DYSON suggested that naybe those kids could be dealt with

under [the category of] nental retardation because arguably it
is a soft brain injury.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -15- February 9, 2004



MR. ROBINSON replied that FAE is not identified as a disability

cat egory under state and f eder al criteria, and t hat
identification process is the gateway for a SESA services
referral. Wthout a doubt, there are kids identified wth
multiple disabilities or enotional disturbance whose etiology,
in part, wuld be FAE, “and we know that to be the case.” Those
ki ds are bei ng served because of their cat egori cal
identification in special education, other than FAE M.

Robi nson said that other than the 1999 grant (which transitioned
to UAF), he doesn’'t know of another grant that’s been issued for
education intervention; subsequent FAE grant funding that he’s
aware of has been preventive in nature.

CHAIR DYSON said his consternation was that he hoped M.
Robi nson wasn’'t inplying that the activities were being
“directed by the noney as opposed to the need.”

MR. ROBI NSON asked, “referring to the activities of the agency?”
CHAIR DYSON replied, “Yes sir.”

MR. ROBINSON said the |owincidence general revenue funding the
state received has a historical attachnment that doesn’t include
FAS/ FAE ki ds. It would include FAS/ FAE kids who have been
identified for the purposes of special education in a special
education category, nost frequently that of enotional or
multiple disabilities. He said, “There may be a distinction
wi t hout a meaning.”

CHAIR DYSON said he didn't want to get obsessive, but inquired
if the statutes or regulations should be changed so that these
ki ds coul d be targeted.

MR. ROBINSON replied that there are no regulations pertaining to
the agency at all. The statute identifies the nmandate for the
agency to provide the lowincidence disability outreach program
and it specifies areas of disability that would be included in
that program “FAE being absent.” The |larger question m ght be,
“I's FAE in Alaska a low incidence disability?” That woul d
fundanentally change the original and continuing |egislative
intent for these funds which up to now has been to support
school district speci al education services specific to
disabilities that are severe and occur infrequently.

CHAIR DYSON asked, “So if we have too many kids with prenatal

al cohol poi soning, they wouldn’'t neet the need of |ow
i nci dence?”

SENATE HES COW TTEE -16- February 9, 2004



MR. ROBINSON confirnmed that they would not neet the criterion
for low incidence, and thereby under the current design, would
not neet the criterion for student-specific service. He told
menbers that this was an inportant distinction wthin the
service nenu because the great mmjority of services that cone
out of the agency are not student-specific, but are broader
services than that. M. Robinson said it had been discussed
internally that should special revenue funding of sone sort
devel op, specific to FAS/ FAE education interventions, SESA would
be very interested, not on a child-specific basis, but on a
statewide or perhaps regional training basis to help train
educators on classroom interventions. He said it was clearly
under st ood t hat t hese chil dren have educat i onal and
psychol ogical differences and that status quo approaches in
speci al education don’t necessarily work.

M5. TUPQU informed nenbers that SESA offers workshops, courses,
newsl etters, and nunmerous services - including the website -
that are available to school districts, whether rural or urban
and regardless of incidence of disabilities in the school
districts. She estimated that there were about 6,000 hits per
nonth on the website, and the newsletter distribution was about
25, 000.

SENATOR GREEN commented that this speaks to SESA' s purpose of
providing intervention training and taking the nessage to the
hone or school. She said FAS/FAE was not in the federal
mandate, and that although SESA doesn’'t specifically serve that
[ popul ation], she assunmes that a child would rarely be only
FAS/ FAE; he/she would I|ikely have other descriptors, sone of
which would fall wunder the category of services that SESA
provi des.

SENATOR W LKEN said he understands that sunset reviews usually
trigger legislative [audits].

TAPE 04-5, SIDE B

CHAIR DYSON said, “... And ny understanding is that the |ast
audit will be out in about a nonth, and our I|egislative audit
has done it several tines.” He reported that Legislative

[ Budget and] Audit (LBA) recommends extending the sunset date
and he had considered delaying action on SB 289 for the nonth

until the next audit would be out, but having LBA s assurance
that there would be no objection - unless the commttee feels
differently - he said he would not hold the bill on that basis.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -17- February 9, 2004



SENATOR W LKEN asked, “So the audit just needs to catch up wth
the bill.”

CHAI R DYSON sai d yes.

MR. ROBINSON said, for the record, he wanted to correct previous
data heard in conmttee. The agency’s newsletter publication
has a mailing list of about 2,000 and regarding the website, FY
03 data reveals a repeat user nunber of over 6,000. There were
nore than 196,000 hits on the site for FY 03.

2:28 p.m

IVS. JANET  JOHNSON, representing her sel f, testified via
tel econference from Cordova, saying that she has a 4.5 year old
daught er naned Rose whose picture is with the conmttee fromthe
last tinme Ms. Johnson testified, in October. She said Rose has
a lowincidence disability, degenerative eye disease, and that
because of her condition “she wal ks funny, she falls down a |ot
and things.” She also has problenms with sensory integration,
whi ch neans she gets overly stinulated by the average school
day. SESA has successfully been working with her while she went
t hrough |LP. Rose transitioned, with SESA's help, into the
school system - and the school system in Cordova has not
traditionally been very conpliant regarding children’ s special
needs - although it is getting better now, wth parent
vol unt eers. SESA is the only authoritative voice regardi ng why
changes need to be nmade - not necessarily big changes involving
financial re-structuring - but changes such as how to set up the
classroomto neet the needs of soneone |ike her daughter. Right
now there is a lot of cooperation in the school system because
of work that SESA has done. Ms. Johnson said that even when
SESA can’'t conme to town, the agency notifies her if there is
sonething available that she should know about. This 1is
especially inportant because Rose’'s condition is degenerative.
She said SESA is her only back-up, and if it was not re-
authorized, it would leave many conmmunities wthout anybody to
reach out to, and it would be tragic.

CHAIR DYSON said he appreciated both her situation and her
taking the tinme to testify today.

M5. JOHNSON then added that SESA trainings were available not

only for teachers but were also open to community nenbers. She
said she could not have done this on her own because, “just ne

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 18- February 9, 2004



tal king about her condition isn't the sanme as getting training
froman authoritative agency.”

CHAIR DYSON asked if there was any further public testinony or
guestions. Hearing none, he said he would entertain a notion.

SENATOR GREEN noved to report SB 289 out of conmttee wth
i ndi vi dual recommendations, multiple letters of support, and the
acconpanyi ng fiscal note.

CHAI R DYSON asked Senator Guess, who was online, if she had any
questions or comrents.

SENATOR GUESS said it sounded good to her.

CHAIR DYSON asked if there was any objection. Seeing and
hearing, none, it was so ordered.

CHAI R DYSON announced that there was no additional business to

cone before the commttee, and adjourned the neeting at 2:34
p. m

SENATE HES COW TTEE -19- February 9, 2004



